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Hennessy Capital Acquisition Corp. II is a newly organized blank check company formed for the purpose of effecting
a merger, capital stock exchange, asset acquisition, stock purchase, reorganization or similar business combination
with one or more businesses, which we refer to throughout this prospectus as our initial business combination.

This is an initial public offering of our securities. Each unit has an offering price of $10.00 and consists of one share
of our common stock and one warrant. Each warrant entitles the holder thereof to purchase one-half of one share of
our common stock at a price of $5.75 per half share, subject to adjustment as described in this prospectus. Warrants
may be exercised only for a whole number of shares of common stock. We have also granted the underwriters a
45-day option to purchase up to an additional 2,625,000 units to cover over-allotments, if any.

We will provide our public stockholders with the opportunity to redeem all or a portion of their shares of our common
stock upon the completion of our initial business combination at a per-share price, payable in cash, equal to the
aggregate amount then on deposit in the trust account described below as of two business days prior to the
consummation of our initial business combination, including interest (which interest shall be net of taxes payable and
working capital released to us) divided by the number of then outstanding shares of common stock that were sold as
part of the units in this offering, which we refer to collectively as our public shares, subject to the limitations
described herein. If we are unable to complete our business combination within 24 months from the closing of this
offering, we will redeem 100% of the public shares at a per-share price, payable in cash, equal to the aggregate
amount then on deposit in the trust account, including interest (less up to $50,000 of interest to pay dissolution
expenses and which interest shall be net of taxes payable and working capital released to us) divided by the number of
then outstanding public shares, subject to applicable law and as further described herein.

Currently, there is no public market for our units, common stock or warrants. Our units have been approved for listing
on the NASDAQ Capital Market, or NASDAQ, under the symbol “HCACU” on or promptly after the date of this
prospectus. Once the securities comprising the units begin separate trading, we expect that the common stock and
warrants will be listed on NASDAQ under the symbols “HCAC” and “HCACW,” respectively.

Our sponsor, Hennessy Capital Partners II LLC, which we refer to as our sponsor throughout this prospectus, has
committed to purchase an aggregate of 13,900,000 warrants (or 15,160,000 warrants if the over-allotment option is
exercised in full) at a price of $0.50 per warrant ($6,950,000 in the aggregate, or $7,580,000 if the over-allotment
option is exercised in full) in a private placement that will close simultaneously with the closing of this offering. We
refer to these warrants throughout this prospectus as the private placement warrants. Each private placement warrant is
exercisable to purchase one-half of one share of our common stock at $5.75 per half share.
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We are an “emerging growth company” under applicable federal securities laws and will be subject to reduced public
company reporting requirements. Investing in our securities involves a high degree of risk.  See “Risk Factors”
beginning on page 27 for a discussion of information that should be considered in connection with an investment in
our securities. Investors will not be entitled to protections normally afforded to investors in Rule 419 blank check
offerings.

Neither the SEC nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or determined if
this prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

Per Unit Total
Public offering price $ 10.00 $ 175,000,000
Underwriting discounts and commissions(1) $ 0.60 $ 10,500,000
Proceeds, before expenses, to us $ 9.40 $ 164,500,000
____________

(1)    Includes $0.36 per unit, or approximately $6,300,000 (or up to approximately $7,245,000 if the underwriters’
over-allotment option is exercised in full) in the aggregate payable to the underwriters for deferred underwriting
commissions to be placed in a trust account located in the United States as described herein. The deferred
commissions will be released to the underwriters only on completion of an initial business combination, in an amount
equal to $0.36 multiplied by the number of shares of common stock sold as part of the units in this offering, as
described in this prospectus. Does not include certain fees and expenses payable to the underwriters in connection
with this offering. See also “Underwriting” beginning on page 129 for a description of compensation and other items of
value payable to the underwriters.

Of the proceeds we receive from this offering and the sale of the private placement warrants described in this
prospectus, $175.0 million or approximately $201.25 million if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in
full ($10.00 per unit), will be deposited into a trust account with Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company acting
as trustee.

The underwriters are offering the units for sale on a firm commitment basis. The underwriters expect to deliver the
units to the purchasers on or about July 28, 2015.

Joint Book-Running Managers

UBS Investment Bank Cantor Fitzgerald & Co.
BMO Capital Markets

July 22, 2015
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You should rely only on the information contained in this prospectus. We have not, and the underwriters have not,
authorized anyone to provide you with different information. If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent
information, you should not rely on it. We are not, and the underwriters are not, making an offer to sell securities in
any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted. You should not assume that the information contained in this
prospectus is accurate as of any date other than the date on the front of this prospectus.
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Summary

This summary only highlights the more detailed information appearing elsewhere in this prospectus. As this is a
summary, it does not contain all of the information that you should consider in making an investment decision. You
should read this entire prospectus carefully, including the information under “Risk Factors” and our financial statements
and the related notes included elsewhere in this prospectus, before investing.

Unless otherwise stated in this prospectus, references to:

➤ “we,” “us,” “company” or “our company” are to Hennessy Capital Acquisition Corp. II;

➤ “public shares” are to shares of our common stock sold as part of the units in this offering (whether they are purchased
in this offering or thereafter in the open market);

➤ “public stockholders” are to the holders of our public shares, including our initial stockholders and members of our
management team to the extent our initial stockholders and/or members of our management team purchase public
shares, provided that each initial stockholder’s and member of our management team’s status as a “public stockholder”
shall only exist with respect to such public shares;

➤ “management” or our “management team” are to our executive officers and directors;

➤ “sponsor” are to Hennessy Capital Partners II LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, an affiliate of Daniel J.
Hennessy, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer;

➤ “founder shares” refer to shares of our common stock initially purchased by our sponsor in a private placement prior to
this offering;

➤ “private placement warrants” are to the warrants issued to our sponsor in a private placement simultaneously with the
closing of this offering; and

➤ “initial stockholders” are to holders of our founder shares prior to this offering.

Unless we tell you otherwise, the information in this prospectus assumes that the underwriters will not exercise their
over-allotment option.

General

We are a newly organized blank check company incorporated as a Delaware corporation and formed for the purpose
of effecting a merger, capital stock exchange, asset acquisition, stock purchase, reorganization or similar business
combination with one or more businesses, which we refer to throughout this prospectus as our initial business
combination. We have not identified any business combination target and we have not, nor has anyone on our behalf,
initiated any substantive discussions, directly or indirectly, with any business combination target.

While we may pursue an acquisition opportunity in any business, industry, sector or geographical location, we intend
to focus on industries that complement our management team’s background, and to capitalize on the ability of our
management team to identify and acquire a business, focusing on the industrial manufacturing, distribution or services
sector in the United States (which may include a business based in the United States which has operations or
opportunities outside of the United States). We will seek to acquire one or more businesses with an aggregate
enterprise value of approximately $500 million to $1 billion.
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Our strategy will be to identify, acquire and, after our initial business combination, build, an industrial manufacturing,
distribution or services business. Industrial manufacturers, distributors and service providers are companies that
manufacture and/or distribute products or provide critical services to a broad range of customers and end use markets.
We believe that an industrial “renaissance” is now underway in the United States and that this resurgence is primarily
the result of three critical cost factors: (i) a stable
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Summary

and flexible labor market, (ii) cheap and abundant sources of energy and (iii) logistical factors such as shipping costs
and the various risks of operating extended global supply chains, each of which we believe is quite favorable to the
United States when compared with advanced manufacturing nations and increasingly competitive when compared
with emerging manufacturing nations.

According to the Boston Consulting Group, or BCG, the manufacturing-cost gap between the U.S. and other highly
developed economies widened significantly over the last decade. Stable and efficient labor is one key to growing the
U.S. competitive advantage. The U.S. has one of the world’s most flexible labor markets and has the highest worker
productivity among the world’s largest exporters by far. Adjusted for productivity, U.S. labor costs are 20% to 54%
lower than those of Western Europe and Japan for many products. Productivity-adjusted wages have grown only 8%
in the U.S. from 2004-2014 while such wages have almost tripled in China.

In addition to the benefits of its labor force, the U.S. also has an energy cost advantage. While industrial prices for
natural gas have risen around the world, they have decreased by approximately 50% in the U.S. since the recovery
from underground shale deposits began in earnest. Natural gas currently costs more than three times as much in China,
France and Germany than in the U.S., and nearly four times as much in Japan. Natural gas is used increasingly as a
fuel in U.S. power plants, which is likely to ensure that the price of industrial electricity will remain between
one-quarter and two-thirds of the cost of electricity in major exporting nations such as China, Japan, Germany, France
and Italy. We believe cheap natural gas will give the U.S. a powerful and unique cost advantage that will benefit a
wide variety of industries across the full value chain, from feedstock to finished goods, and should be largely
exclusive to the U.S. for the foreseeable future.

When taking all of this into account, the U.S. has emerged as the lowest-cost manufacturing location in the developed
world, and at the same time, has achieved approximate cost parity with low-cost countries in Eastern Europe. The cost
gap with China has shrunk dramatically, and, if the trend of the last ten years continues, will likely disappear before
the end of the decade.

We believe these factors are further compounded when adding logistical factors to the decision making process.
Factors such as shipping costs, the various risks of operating extended global supply chains, just-in-time inventory
requirements and shorter product life cycles necessitate that production and end-markets be co-located. According to
BCG, the U.S. and Mexico are the “rising stars” of the top 25 export economies because of low wage growth, sustained
productivity gains, stable exchange rates and significant energy and electricity cost advantages.

Hennessy Capital LLC is the managing member of our sponsor and was founded by Daniel J. Hennessy, our
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in 2013. From September 2013 to February 2015, Mr. Hennessy served as
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Hennessy Capital Acquisition Corp., or Hennessy 1, which
merged with School Bus Holdings Inc., or SBH, in February 2015 and is now known as Blue Bird Corporation
(NASDAQ: BLBD), and since February 2015, has served as its Vice Chairman. Mr. Hennessy is also a Partner at
Code Hennessy & Simmons LLC (n/k/a CHS Capital or “CHS”) a middle-market private equity investment firm he
co-founded in 1988. Over a 25-year period, CHS invested $2.8 billion in 395 operating companies with aggregate
revenues of approximately $15 billion. Mr. Hennessy has served as Chairman of the Board and Director of CHS
portfolio companies that manufacture and/or distribute a broad array of products or provide services for the industrial,
infrastructure, energy and packaging sectors including:

➤ Dura-Line Holdings, a producer of high-density polyethylene conduit and pipes (from 2012 to 2014);

➤ Thermon Group Holdings (NYSE: THR), a designer and manufacturer of heat tracing systems focused on the
external application of heat to pipes, tanks and instrumentation (from 2010 to 2011);
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Summary

➤ Penhall International, a provider of concrete cutting, breaking, excavation and highway grinding services (from 2006
to 2010);

➤ GSE Environmental, a supplier of geosynthetic liners and products (from 2004 to 2011);

➤ WNA, a designer and manufacturer of upscale plastic disposable tableware products (from 2002 to 2007); and

➤ Kranson Industries (n/k/a TricorBraun), a distributor of plastic and glass containers (from 1999 to 2004).

Mr. Hennessy has over 25 years of middle-market private equity investment experience, dedicated almost entirely to
investments in industrial manufacturing, distribution or services operating companies. He has initiated and overseen
numerous add-on acquisitions, divestitures, IPO’s and debt capital markets issues for CHS-owned companies and is
well known by the most active middle-market private equity firms, investment banks and debt financing sources that
will be called upon to assist us in executing our strategy.

We have assembled a group of independent directors who will bring us public company governance, executive
leadership, operations oversight, private equity investment management and capital markets experience. Our Board
members have extensive experience, having served as directors, CEO’s, CFO’s or in other executive and advisory
capacities for numerous publicly-listed and privately-owned companies. Our directors have experience with
acquisitions, divestitures and corporate strategy and implementation, which we believe will be of significant benefit to
us as we evaluate potential acquisition or merger candidates as well as following the completion of our initial business
combination.

Our entire management team served as executive officers, directors and/or advisors of Hennessy 1, a former blank
check company which raised $115.0 million in its initial public offering in January 2014 and completed its initial
business combination with SBH in February 2015. In connection with their duties with Hennessy 1, our executive
officers reviewed more than one hundred potential targets in the diversified industrial manufacturing and distribution
sectors in the United States between February 2014 (a month following Hennessy 1’s initial public offering) and June
2014 (when Hennessy 1 decided to focus its efforts on a business combination with School Bus Holdings Inc.).
Hennessy 1’s stockholders approved the business combination with School Bus Holdings Inc. with approximately 99%
of the shares voting, 98% of which were voted in favor of the transaction, allowing for the swift completion of the
business combination only 13 months after Hennessy 1’s initial public offering. The purchase price for the transaction
reflected a pro forma enterprise value of $427 million which implied a purchase multiple of 5.7x to 5.9x FY2015
estimated EBITDA based on School Bus Holdings Inc.’s management’s guidance versus the average of the public
comparables of 9.3x EBITDA. The transaction included the assumption of $223 million of debt which implied 2.5x
net leverage at closing (based on FY2014 adjusted EBITDA). We believe that potential sellers of target businesses
will view the fact that our management team has successfully closed a business combination with a vehicle similar to
our company as a positive factor in considering whether or not to enter into a business combination with us. However,
past performance by our management team is not a guarantee of success with respect to any business combination we
may consummate.

We believe our management team is well positioned to take advantage of the growing set of investment opportunities
focused on industrial manufacturing, distribution or service companies in the United States, to create value for our
stockholders, and that our contacts and relationships, ranging from owners of private and public companies, private
equity funds, investment bankers, attorneys, accountants and business brokers will allow us to generate attractive
acquisition opportunities. Our management team is led by Daniel J. Hennessy, who has over 25 years of experience in
the private equity investment business and served as Chief Executive Officer of Hennessy 1. Members of our
management team are not obligated to devote any specific number of hours to our matters but they intend to devote as
much of their time as they deem necessary to our affairs until we have completed
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our initial business combination. The amount of time that Mr. Hennessy or any other members of our management
will devote in any time period will vary based on whether a target business has been selected for our initial business
combination and the current stage of the business combination process, but our business will be Mr. Hennessy’s
primary professional focus and we expect that he will devote a substantial portion of his professional time to our
affairs.

Initial Business Combination

NASDAQ rules provide that our initial business combination must be with one or more target businesses that together
have a fair market value equal to at least 80% of the balance in the trust account (less any deferred underwriting
commissions and taxes payable on interest earned) at the time of our signing a definitive agreement in connection with
our initial business combination. If our board is not able to independently determine the fair market value of the target
business or businesses, we will obtain an opinion from an independent investment banking firm that is a member of
the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, or FINRA, or a qualified independent accounting firm with respect to the
satisfaction of such criteria. If our securities are not listed on NASDAQ after this offering, we would not be required
to satisfy the 80% requirement. However, we intend to satisfy the 80% requirement even if our securities are not listed
on NASDAQ at the time of our initial business combination.

We anticipate structuring our initial business combination so that the post-transaction company in which our public
stockholders own shares will own or acquire 100% of the equity interests or assets of the target business or businesses.
We may, however, structure our initial business combination such that the post-transaction company owns or acquires
less than 100% of such interests or assets of the target business in order to meet certain objectives of the target
management team or stockholders or for other reasons, but we will only complete such business combination if the
post-transaction company owns or acquires 50% or more of the outstanding voting securities of the target or otherwise
acquires a controlling interest in the target sufficient for it not to be required to register as an investment company
under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, or the Investment Company Act. Even if the
post-transaction company owns or acquires 50% or more of the voting securities of the target, our stockholders prior
to the business combination may collectively own a minority interest in the post-transaction company, depending on
valuations ascribed to the target and us in the business combination transaction. For example, we could pursue a
transaction in which we issue a substantial number of new shares in exchange for all of the outstanding capital stock
of a target. In this case, we would acquire a 100% controlling interest in the target. However, as a result of the
issuance of a substantial number of new shares, our stockholders immediately prior to our initial business combination
could own less than a majority of our outstanding shares subsequent to our initial business combination. If less than
100% of the equity interests or assets of a target business or businesses are owned or acquired by the post-transaction
company, the portion of such business or businesses that is owned or acquired is what will be valued for purposes of
the 80% of net assets test. If the business combination involves more than one target business, the 80% of net assets
test will be based on the aggregate value of all of the target businesses. If our securities are not listed on NASDAQ
after this offering, we would not be required to satisfy the 80% requirement. However, we intend to satisfy the 80%
requirement even if our securities are not listed on NASDAQ at the time of our initial business combination.

Consistent with this strategy, we have identified the following general criteria and guidelines that we believe are
important in evaluating prospective target businesses. We will use these criteria and guidelines in evaluating
acquisition opportunities, but we may decide to enter into our initial business combination with a target business that
does not meet these criteria and guidelines.

➤ Middle-Market Businesses. We will seek to acquire one or more businesses with an aggregate enterprise value of
approximately $500 million to $1 billion and an EBITDA of $50 million to over $100 million, determined in the sole
discretion of our officers and directors according to reasonably
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accepted valuation standards and methodologies. We believe that the middle market segment provides the greatest
number of opportunities for investment and is the market consistent with our sponsor’s previous investment history.
This segment is where we believe we have the strongest network to identify the greatest number of attractive
opportunities. We are targeting more sizable businesses than Hennessy 1 as we believe the larger market capitalization
and public float of the resulting company will be more attractive to our investors.

➤ Established Companies with Proven Track Records. We will seek to acquire one or more established companies with
consistent historical financial performance. We will typically focus on companies with a history of strong operating
and financial results and strong fundamentals. We do not intend to acquire start-up companies or companies with
recurring negative free cash flow.

➤ Companies with Proven Revenue and Earnings Growth or Potential for Revenue and Earnings Growth. We will seek
to acquire one or more businesses that have achieved or have the potential for significant revenue and earnings growth
through a combination of organic growth, synergistic add-on acquisitions, new product markets and geographies,
increased production capacity, expense reduction and increased operating leverage.

➤ Companies with, or with the Potential for, Strong Free Cash Flow Generation. We will seek to acquire one or more
businesses that already have, or have the potential to generate, consistent, stable and increasing free cash flow. We
will focus on one or more businesses that have predictable revenue streams.

➤ Strong Competitive Position. We intend to focus on acquisition targets that have a leading, growing or niche market
position in their respective industries. We will analyze the strengths and weaknesses of target businesses relative to
their competitors. We will seek to acquire one or more businesses that demonstrate advantages when compared to
their competitors, which may help to protect their market position and profitability.

➤ Experienced Management Team. We will seek to acquire one or more businesses with a complete, experienced
management team that provides a platform for us to further develop the acquired business’s management capabilities.
We will seek to partner with a potential target’s management team and expect that the operating and financial abilities
of our executive team and board will complement their own capabilities.

➤ Sectors Exhibiting Secular Growth or with Potential for Cyclical Uptick. We intend to focus on acquisition targets in
sectors which exhibit positive secular growth or potential for near-term cyclical uptick. We plan to identify sectors
that have demonstrated strong positive growth in recent years, possess drivers for continued growth and are
strategically positioned to benefit from upswings in their respective industry cycles.

➤ Benefit from Being a Public Company. We intend to acquire one or more businesses that will benefit from being
publicly traded and can effectively utilize the broader access to capital and the public profile that are associated with
being a publicly traded company.

These criteria are not intended to be exhaustive. Any evaluation relating to the merits of a particular initial business
combination may be based, to the extent relevant, on these general guidelines as well as other considerations, factors
and criteria that our management may deem relevant. These criteria are substantially similar to the criteria set forth by
Hennessy 1 for its initial business combination. Hennessy 1’s business combination with School Bus Holdings Inc.,
which, through its subsidiaries, conducts its business under the “Blue Bird” name, and satisfied each criteria.

In addition, the members of our board of directors have significant executive management and public company
experience with industrial manufacturing, distribution or service companies. Over the course of their careers, the
members of our management team and board of directors have developed a broad
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network of contacts and corporate relationships that we believe will be useful for sourcing investment opportunities.
This network has been developed through our management team’s experience in:

➤ sourcing, acquiring, operating, developing, growing, financing and selling businesses; and

➤ executing transactions under varying economic and financial market conditions.

This network has provided our management team with a flow of referrals that have resulted in numerous transactions.
We believe that the network of contacts and relationships of our management team will provide us with an important
source of investment opportunities. In addition, we anticipate that target business candidates will be brought to our
attention from various unaffiliated sources, including investment market participants, private equity groups,
investment banks, consultants, accounting firms and large business enterprises. In connection with their duties with
Hennessy 1, our executive officers reviewed more than one hundred potential targets in the diversified industrial
manufacturing and distribution sectors in the United States between February 2014 (a month following Hennessy 1’s
initial public offering) and June 2014 (when Hennessy 1 decided to focus its efforts on a business combination with
School Bus Holdings Inc.).

In evaluating a prospective target business, we expect to conduct a thorough due diligence review which will
encompass, among other things, meetings with incumbent management and employees, document reviews, inspection
of facilities, as well as a review of financial and other information which will be made available to us.

We are not prohibited from pursuing an initial business combination with a company that is affiliated with our
sponsor, officers or directors. In the event we seek to complete our initial business combination with a company that is
affiliated with our sponsor, officers or directors, we, or a committee of independent directors, will obtain an opinion
from an independent investment banking firm which is a member of FINRA or a qualified independent accounting
firm that our initial business combination is fair to our company from a financial point of view.

Members of our management team may directly or indirectly own common stock and warrants following this offering,
and, accordingly, may have a conflict of interest in determining whether a particular target business is an appropriate
business with which to effectuate our initial business combination. Further, each of our officers and directors may
have a conflict of interest with respect to evaluating a particular business combination if the retention or resignation of
any such officers and directors was included by a target business as a condition to any agreement with respect to our
initial business combination. For additional information regarding our executive officers’ and directors’ business
affiliations and potential conflicts of interest, see “Management—Directors and Executive Officers” and
“Management—Conflicts of Interest.”

Each of our officers and directors presently has, and any of them in the future may have additional, fiduciary or
contractual obligations to another entity pursuant to which such officer or director is required to present a business
combination opportunity to such entity. Accordingly, if any of our officers or directors becomes aware of a business
combination opportunity which is suitable for an entity to which he or she has current fiduciary or contractual
obligations, he or she will honor his or her fiduciary or contractual obligations to present such business combination
opportunity to such entity, and only present it to us if such entity rejects the opportunity. We do not believe, however,
that the fiduciary duties or contractual obligations of our executive officers will materially affect our ability to
complete our business combination. Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that we renounce
our interest in any corporate opportunity offered to any director or officer unless such opportunity is expressly offered
to such person solely in his or her capacity as a director or officer of our company and such opportunity is one we are
legally and contractually permitted to undertake and would otherwise be reasonable for us to pursue.

6
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Our sponsor, executive officers, directors and director nominees have agreed, pursuant to a written letter agreement,
not to participate in the formation of, or become an officer or director of, any other blank check company until we
have entered into a definitive agreement regarding our initial business combination or we have failed to complete our
initial business combination within 24 months after the closing of this offering.

Prior to the date of this prospectus, we will file a Registration Statement on Form 8-A with the SEC to voluntarily
register our securities under Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act. As
a result, we will be subject to the rules and regulations promulgated under the Exchange Act. We have no current
intention of filing a Form 15 to suspend our reporting or other obligations under the Exchange Act prior or subsequent
to the consummation of our business combination.

We are an “emerging growth companpt"> 76   111   162 

Interest on long-term debt
  170   263   343   520 

Total interest expense
  1,290   1,471   2,573   2,858 

Net interest income
  5,725   5,354   11,382   10,614 

Provision for loan losses
  390   804   1,035   1,225 

Net interest income after provision for loan losses
  5,335   4,550   10,347   9,389 

Noninterest income:

Service charges, fees, commissions and other
  797   711   1,540   1,420 

Wealth management income
  138   236   281   375 

Mortgage banking income
  302   98   376   146 

Net gain on sale of investment securities available-for-sale
  99   2   383   12 

Other-than-temporary impairment of investment equity securities
              (84)
Net gain (loss) on sale of other real estate owned

  1   1,583   (7)  1,583 
Total noninterest income

  1,337   2,630   2,573   3,452 
Noninterest expense:

Salaries and employee benefits expense
  1,749   1,628   3,479   3,074 

Net occupancy and equipment expense
  753   699   1,543   1,375 

Other expenses
  1,396   1,743   2,190   3,016 

Total noninterest expense
  3,898   4,070   7,212   7,465 
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Income before income taxes
  2,774   3,110   5,708   5,376 

Provision for income taxes
  490   751   1,004   1,218 

Net income
  2,284   2,359   4,704   4,158 

Other comprehensive income:

Unrealized gain on investment securities available-for-sale
  1,791   3,183   1,768   4,283 

Reclassification adjustment for gain on sales included in net income
  (99)  (2)  (383)  (12)

Reclassification adjustment for other-than-temporary impairment
              84 
Income tax expense  related to other comprehensive income

  575   1,082   471   1,481 
Other comprehensive income, net of income taxes

  1,117   2,099   914   2,874 
Comprehensive income

 $3,401  $4,458  $5,618  $7,032 
Per share data:

Net income:

Basic
 $0.73  $0.75  $1.51  $1.32 

Diluted
 $0.73  $0.75  $1.51  $1.32 

Average common shares outstanding:

Basic
  3,118,429   3,146,611   3,118,269   3,144,386 

Diluted
  3,118,690   3,147,904   3,118,880   3,146,366 

Dividends declared
 $0.21  $0.20  $0.42  $0.40 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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PEOPLES FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (UNAUDITED)
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Common
 Stock

Capital
Surplus

Retained
Earnings

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income
(Loss)

Treasury
Stock Total

Balance, January 1, 2012 $ 6,683 $ 3,141 $ 51,342 $ 3,645 $ (5,198 ) $ 59,613
Net income 4,704 4,704
Other comprehensive
income, net of income taxes 914 914
Dividends declared:  $0.42
per share (1,308 ) (1,308 )
Reissuance under option
plan: 4,500 shares 14 82 96
Repurchase and held: 5,000
shares (143 ) (143 )
Balance, June 30, 2012 $ 6,683 $ 3,155 $ 54,738 $ 4,559 $ (5,259 ) $ 63,876

Balance, January 1, 2011 $ 6,683 $ 3,118 $ 46,048 $ (834 ) $ (4,499 ) $ 50,516
Net income 4,158 4,158
Other comprehensive
income, net of income taxes 2,874 2,874
Dividends declared:  $0.40
per share (1,268 ) (1,268 )
Reissuance under option
plan:  5,500 shares (149 ) (149 )
Repurchase and held:  7,425
shares 23 135 158
Balance, June 30, 2011 $ 6,683 $ 3,141 $ 48,938 $ 2,040 $ (4,513 ) $ 56,289

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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PEOPLES FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

For the Six Months Ended June 30 2012 2011
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $4,704 $4,158
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization of premises and equipment 407 424
Amortization of intangibles 97 183
Provision for loan losses 1,035 1,225
(Gain) loss on sale of other real estate owned 7 (1,583 )
Net amortization of investment securities available-for-sale 948 188
Amortization of deferred loan costs 131 108
Gain on sale of investment securities available-for-sale (383 ) (12 )
Other-than-temporary impairment of investment equity securities 84
Net income from investment in life insurance (187 ) (185 )
Net change in:
Loans held for sale (1,673 ) (62 )
Accrued interest receivable 545 (269 )
Other assets (1,912 ) 1,818
Accrued interest payable (36 ) (4 )
Other liabilities 207 (1,765 )
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,890 4,308
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales of investment securities available-for-sale 4,833 15,259
Proceeds from repayments on investment securities available-for-sale 7,290 767
Purchases of investment securities available-for-sale (4,255 )
Net increase in loans (13,913 ) (33,163 )
Purchases of premises and equipment (1,207 ) (357 )
Purchases of investment in life insurance (450 ) (2,000 )
Investment in other real estate owned (196 )
Proceeds from sale of other real estate owned 62 1,970
Net cash used in investing activities (3,581 ) (21,779 )
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase in deposits 43,828 31,835
Repayment of long-term debt (394 ) (5,474 )
Net decrease in short-term borrowings (30,558 ) (2,372 )
Repurchase of common shares (143 ) (149 )
Reissuance of common shares 96 158
Cash dividends paid (1,308 ) (1,268 )
Net cash provided by financing activities 11,521 22,730
Net  increase in cash and cash equivalents 11,830 5,259
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 10,559 17,841
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $22,389 $23,100
Supplemental disclosures:
Cash paid during the period for:
Interest $2,609 $2,862
Income taxes $850 $1,250
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Noncash items:
Transfers from loans to other real estate owned $1,363

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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PEOPLES FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

1.  Basis of presentation:

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements of  Peoples Financial Services Corp, and subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Company”) have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (“GAAP”) for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and
Article 10-01 of Regulation S-X. In the opinion of management, all normal recurring adjustments necessary for a fair
presentation of the financial position and results of operations for the periods presented have been included. All
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Prior-period amounts are
reclassified when necessary to conform with the current year’s presentation. These reclassifications did not have any
effect on the operating results or financial position of the Company. The operating results and financial position of the
Company for the three and six months ended and as of June 30, 2012, are not necessarily indicative of the results of
operations and financial position that may be expected in the future.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported periods.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. For additional information and disclosures required under GAAP,
reference is made to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2011.

The Company has evaluated events and transactions occurring subsequent to the balance sheet date of June 30, 2012,
for items that should potentially be recognized or disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.  The evaluation
was conducted through the date these consolidated financial statements were issued.

2.  Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share represent income available to common stockholders divided by the weighted-average number
of common shares outstanding during the period.  Diluted earnings per share reflect additional common shares that
would have been outstanding if dilutive potential common shares had been issued, as well as any adjustment to
income that would result from the assumed issuance.  Potential common shares that may be issued by the Company
relate solely to outstanding stock options, and are determined using the treasury stock method.

Stock options for 6,200 and 9,113 shares of common stock were not considered in computing diluted earnings per
share for the three and six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively, because they were antidilutive.

7
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PEOPLES FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

3.  Investment securities available-for-sale:

The amortized cost and fair value of investment securities available-for-sale aggregated by investment category at
June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 are summarized as follows:

June 30, 2012
Amortized

Cost

Gross
Unrealized

Gains

Gross
Unrealized

Losses
Fair

Value
U.S. Government-sponsored enterprises $29,524 $3,491 $33,015
State and municipals:
Taxable 16,623 1,859 18,482
Tax-exempt 33,551 1,955 $9 35,497
Corporate debt securities 4,040 45 594 3,491
Mortgage-backed securities:
U.S. Government agencies 15,288 189 30 15,447
U.S. Government-sponsored enterprises 22,175 135 116 22,194
Equity securities:
Preferred
Common 487 22 39 470
Total $121,688 $7,696 $788 $128,596

December 31, 2011
Amortized

Cost

Gross
Unrealized

Gains

Gross
Unrealized

Losses
Fair

Value
U.S. Government-sponsored enterprises $29,671 $3,105 $32,776
State and municipals:
Taxable 18,120 1,608 19,728
Tax-exempt 38,217 1,693 $224 39,686
Corporate debt securities 4,462 330 942 3,850
Mortgage-backed securities:
U.S. Government agencies 16,827 185 100 16,912
U.S. Government-sponsored enterprises 26,396 66 199 26,263
Equity securities:
Preferred 54 63 117
Common 629 22 84 567
Total $134,376 $7,072 $1,549 $139,899
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PEOPLES FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

3.  Investment securities available-for-sale (continued)

The maturity distribution of the fair value, which is the net carrying amount, of the debt securities classified as
available-for-sale at June 30, 2012, is summarized as follows:

June 30, 2012
Fair

Value
Within one year $250
After one but within five years 14,855
After five but within ten years 35,483
After ten years 39,897

90,485
Mortgage-backed securities 37,641
Total $128,126

Securities with a carrying value of $89,099 and $105,135 at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively, were
pledged to secure public deposits and repurchase agreements as required or permitted by law.

At June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, there were no securities of any individual issuer, except for U.S.
Government agencies and sponsored enterprises, which exceeded 10.0 percent of stockholders’ equity.

The fair value and gross unrealized losses of investment securities available-for-sale with unrealized losses for which
an other-than-temporary impairment (“OTTI”) has not been recognized at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011,
aggregated by investment category and length of time that the individual securities have been in a continuous
unrealized loss position, are summarized as follows:

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total

June 30, 2012 Fair Value
Unrealized

Losses Fair Value
Unrealized

Losses Fair Value
Unrealized

Losses
U.S. Government-sponsored
enterprises
State and municipals:
Taxable
Tax-Exempt $1,176 $6 $300 $3 $1,476 $9
Corporate debt securities 2,417 594 2,417 594
Mortgage-backed securities:
U.S. Government agencies 3,538 13 2,801 17 6,339 30
U.S. Government-sponsored
enterprises 9,294 89 2,651 27 11,945 116
Equity securities:
Preferred
Common 98 39 98 39
Total $14,008 $108 $8,267 $680 $22,275 $788
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PEOPLES FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

3.  Investment securities available-for-sale (continued)

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total

December 31, 2011
Fair

Value
Unrealized

Losses
Fair

Value
Unrealized

Losses
Fair

Value
Unrealized

Losses
U.S. Government-sponsored
enterprises
State and municipals:
Taxable
Tax-Exempt $1,142 $39 $2,859 $185 $4,001 $224
Corporate debt securities 970 61 2,130 881 3,100 942
Mortgage-backed securities:
U.S. Government agencies 10,785 100 10,785 100
U.S. Government-sponsored
enterprises 21,825 199 21,825 199
Equity securities:
Preferred
Common 195 84 195 84
Total $34,722 $399 $5,184 $1,150 $39,906 $1,549

The Company had 20 investment securities, consisting of three tax-exempt state and municipal obligations, two
corporate debt securities, 13 mortgage-backed securities and two common equity securities that were in unrealized
loss positions at June 30, 2012.  Of these securities, one state and municipal obligation, two corporate debt securities,
four mortgage-backed securities and two common equity securities were in continuous unrealized loss positions for 12
months or more.  The unrealized losses on the common equity securities were a direct reflection of reductions in stock
values in the financial industry sector, as a whole, and was not a result of credit or other issues that would cause the
Company to recognize an OTTI charge.  Management does not consider the unrealized losses on the debt securities, as
a result of changes in interest rates, to be OTTI based on historical evidence that indicates the cost of these securities
is recoverable within a reasonable period of time in relation to normal cyclical changes in the market rates of interest.
Moreover, because there has been no material change in the credit quality of the issuers or other events or
circumstances that may cause a significant adverse impact on the fair value of these securities, and management does
not intend to sell these securities and it is unlikely that the Company will be required to sell these securities before
recovery of their amortized cost basis, which may be maturity, the Company does not consider the unrealized losses to
be OTTI at June 30, 2012.

In comparison, the Company had 31 investment securities, consisting of six tax-exempt state and municipal
obligations, three corporate debt securities, 18 mortgage-backed securities and four common equity securities, which
were in unrealized loss positions at December 31, 2011.  Of these securities, four state and municipal obligations, two
corporate debt securities and each of the common equity securities were in continuous unrealized loss positions for 12
months or more.

10
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PEOPLES FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

4.  Loans, net and allowance for loan losses:

The major classifications of loans outstanding, net of deferred loan origination fees and costs at June 30, 2012 and
December 31, 2011 are summarized as follows. Net deferred loan costs were $585 at June 30, 2012, and $563 at
December 31, 2011.

June 30, 2012 December 31, 2011
Commercial $ 167,724 $ 160,828
Real estate:
Commercial 154,442 145,554
Residential 115,033 118,125
Consumer 19,855 20,596
Total $ 457,054 $ 445,103

11

Edgar Filing: Hennessy Capital Acquisition Corp II - Form 424B4

25



PEOPLES FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

4.  Loans, net and allowance for loan losses (continued)

The changes in the allowance for loan losses account by major classification of loan for the three and six months
ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 are summarized as follows:

Real estate
June 30, 2012 Commercial Commercial Residential Consumer Unallocated Total
Allowance for loan losses:
Beginning Balance April 1,
2012 $ 2,186 $1,802 $776 $198 $627 $5,589
Charge-offs (5 ) (79 ) (84 )
Recoveries 1 20 21
Provisions (65 ) 168 43 58 186 390
Ending balance $ 2,117 $1,970 $819 $197 $813 $5,916

Real estate
June 30, 2012 Commercial Commercial Residential Consumer Unallocated Total
Allowance for loan losses:
Beginning Balance January 1,
2012 $ 2,047 $1,515 $761 $198 $828 $5,349
Charge-offs (207 ) (100 ) (21 ) (177 ) (505 )
Recoveries 1 36 37
Provisions 276 555 79 140 (15 ) 1,035
Ending balance $ 2,117 $1,970 $819 $197 $813 $5,916

Real estate
June 30, 2011 Commercial Commercial Residential Consumer Unallocated Total
Allowance for loan losses:
Beginning Balance, April 1,
2011 $ 1,695 $1,468 $732 $284 $177 $4,356
Charge-offs (23 ) (23 )
Recoveries 1 1 14 16
Provisions 410 116 1 14 263 804
Ending balance $ 2,105 $1,585 $734 $289 $440 $5,153

Real estate
June 30, 2011 Commercial Commercial Residential Consumer Unallocated Total
Allowance for loan losses:
Beginning Balance, January 1,
2011 $ 1,696 $1,384 $726 $243 $51 $4,100
Charge-offs (58 ) (56 ) (8 ) (77 ) (199 )
Recoveries 2 1 24 27
Provisions 467 255 15 99 389 1,225
Ending balance $ 2,105 $1,585 $734 $289 $440 $5,153
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PEOPLES FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

4.  Loans, net and allowance for loan losses (continued)

The allocation of the allowance for loan losses and the related loans by major classifications of loans at June 30, 2012
and December 31, 2011 is summarized as follows:

Real estate
June 30, 2012 Commercial Commercial Residential Consumer Unallocated Total
Allowance for loan
losses:
Ending balance $ 2,117 $ 1,970 $ 819 $ 197 $ 813 $ 5,916
Ending balance:
individually evaluated for
impairment $ 485 $ 122 $ 118 $ 1 $ 726
Ending balance:
collectively evaluated for
impairment $ 1,632 $ 1,848 $ 701 $ 196 $ 813 $ 5,190
Loans receivable:
Ending balance $ 167,724 $ 154,442 $ 115,033 $ 19,855 $ 457,054
Ending balance:
individually evaluated for
impairment $ 6,650 $ 4,799 $ 1,418 $ 1 $ 12,868
Ending balance:
collectively evaluated for
impairment $ 161,074 $ 149,643 $ 113,615 $ 19,854 $ 444,186

Real estate
December 31, 2011 Commercial Commercial Residential Consumer Unallocated Total
Allowance for loan
losses:
Ending balance $ 2,047 $ 1,515 $ 761 $ 198 $ 828 $ 5,349
Ending balance:
individually evaluated for
impairment $ 698 $ 40 $ 71 $ 1 $ 810
Ending balance:
collectively evaluated for
impairment $ 1,349 $ 1,475 $ 690 $ 197 $ 828 $ 4,539
Loans receivable:
Ending balance $ 160,828 $ 145,554 $ 118,125 $ 20,596 $ 445,103
Ending balance:
individually evaluated for
impairment $ 8,433 $ 7,832 $ 1,226 $ 1 $ 17,492
Ending balance:
collectively evaluated for
impairment $ 152,395 $ 137,722 $ 116,899 $ 20,595 $ 427,611
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PEOPLES FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

4.  Loans, net and allowance for loan losses (continued)

The following tables present the major classifications of the loan portfolio summarized by the aggregate pass rating
and the classified ratings of special mention, substandard and doubtful within the Company’s internal risk rating
system at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011:

June 30, 2012 Pass
Special
Mention Substandard Doubtful Total

Commercial $155,333 $5,743 $ 2,505 $4,143 $167,724
Real estate:
Commercial 142,570 8,727 2,886 259 154,442
Residential 113,912 1,121 115,033
Consumer 19,841 14 19,855
Total $431,656 $14,484 $ 5,391 $5,523 $457,054

December 31, 2011 Pass
Special
Mention Substandard Doubtful Total

Commercial $145,145 $7,262 $ 2,550 $5,871 $160,828
Real estate:
Commercial 136,166 3,223 4,995 1,170 145,554
Residential 117,236 889 118,125
Consumer 20,587 9 20,596
Total $419,134 $10,494 $ 7,545 $7,930 $445,103

Information concerning nonaccrual loans by major loan category at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, is as
follows:

June 30, 2012 December 31, 2011
Commercial $ 4,143 $ 5,871
Real estate:
Commercial 259 1,170
Residential 1,121 889
Consumer
Total $ 5,523 $ 7,930
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PEOPLES FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

4.  Loans, net and allowance for loan losses (continued)

The major categories of the loan portfolio by past due status at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, are summarized
as follows:

June 30, 2012
30-59 Days
Past Due

60-89 Days
Past Due

Greater
than

90 Days
Total

Past Due Current Total Loans

Loans > 90
Days and
Accruing

Commercial $1,143 $100 $2 $1,245 $166,479 $167,724 $2
Real estate:
Commercial 1,228 318 22 1,568 152,874 154,442 22
Residential 1,269 397 297 1,950 113,083 115,033 297
Consumer 174 126 416 470 19,385 19,855 416
Total $3,814 $941 $737 $5,233 $451,821 $457,054 $737

December 31,
2011

30-59 Days
Past Due

60-89 Days
Past Due

Greater
than

90 Days
Total

Past Due Current Total Loans

Loans > 90
Days and
Accruing

Commercial $408 $324 $12 $744 $160,084 $160,828 $12
Real estate:
Commercial 2,177 2,177 143,377 145,554
Residential 976 217 362 1,555 116,570 118,125 337
Consumer 335 98 311 744 19,852 20,596 311
Total $3,896 $639 $685 $5,220 $439,883 $445,103 $660
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PEOPLES FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

4.  Loans, net and allowance for loan losses (continued)

The following tables summarize information in regards to impaired loans for the three and six months ended June 30,
2012 and 2011, and for the year ended December 31, 2011, by loan portfolio class:

This Quarter Year to Date

June 30, 2012
Recorded
Investment

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

Related
Allowance

Average
Recorded
Investment

Interest
Income

Recognized

Average
Recorded
Investment

Interest
Income

Recognized
With no related
allowance:
Commercial $ 3,965 $ 3,965 4,220 $ 16 $ 4,382 $ 32
Real estate:
Commercial 980 980 1,006 58 1,005 78
Residential 706 706 803 782
Consumer
Total 5,651 5,651 6,029 74 6,169 110

With an allowance
recorded:
Commercial 2,685 2,685 $ 485 2,776 41 3,425 45
Real estate:
Commercial 3,819 3,819 122 3,741 7 3,739 64
Residential 712 712 118 763 575
Consumer 1 1 1 1 1
Total 7,217 7,217 726 7,281 48 7,740 109

Commercial 6,650 6,650 485 6,996 57 7,807 77
Real estate:
Commercial 4,799 4,799 122 4,747 65 4,744 142
Residential 1,418 1,418 118 1,566 1,357
Consumer 1 1 1 1 1
Total $ 12,868 $ 12,868 $ 726 $ 13,310 $ 122 $ 13,909 $ 219
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PEOPLES FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

4.  Loans, net and allowance for loan losses (continued)

For the Year Ended

December 31, 2011
Recorded

Investment

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

Related
Allowance

Average
Recorded

Investment

Interest
 Income

Recognized
With no related allowance:
Commercial $4,316 $4,316 $5,759 $ 198
Real estate:
Commercial 4,136 4,136 4,123 187
Residential 889 889 948
Consumer 10 1
Total 9,341 9,341 10,840 386

With an allowance recorded:
Commercial 4,117 4,117 $698 3,504 46
Real estate:
Commercial 3,696 3,696 40 2,940 233
Residential 337 337 71 108 11
Consumer 1 1 1 8
Total 8,151 8,151 810 6,560 290

Commercial 8,433 8,433 698 9,263 244
Real estate:
Commercial 7,832 7,832 40 7,063 420
Residential 1,226 1,226 71 1,056 11
Consumer 1 1 1 18 1
Total $17,492 $17,492 $810 $17,400 $ 676

17

Edgar Filing: Hennessy Capital Acquisition Corp II - Form 424B4

33



PEOPLES FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

4.  Loans, net and allowance for loan losses (continued)

This Quarter Year to Date

June 30, 2011
Recorded

Investment

Unpaid
Principal
Balance

Related
Allowance

Average
Recorded

Investment

Interest
Income

Recognized

Average
Recorded

Investment

Interest
Income

Recognized
With no related
allowance:
Commercial $ 4,996 $ 4,996 $ 5,796 $ 65 $ 6,276 $ 170
Real estate:
Commercial 4,096 4,096 4,137 63 4,010 99
Residential 1,076 1,076 1,024 925
Consumer 12 12 12 1 13 1
Total 10,180 10,180 10,969 129 11,224 270

With an allowance
recorded:
Commercial 3,953 3,953 $ 1,136 3,036 13 2,535 21
Real estate:
Commercial 2,056 2,056 52 2,061 33 2,144 66
Residential
Consumer 9 9 9 9 9
Total 6,018 6,018 1,197 5,106 46 4,688 87

Commercial 8,949 8,949 1,136 8,832 78 8,811 191
Real estate:
Commercial 6,152 6,152 52 6,198 96 6,154 165
Residential 1,076 1,076 1,024 925
Consumer 21 21 9 21 1 22 1
Total $ 16,198 $ 16,198 $ 1,197 $ 16,075 $ 175 $ 15,912 $ 357

Included in the commercial loan and commercial real estate categories are troubled debt restructurings that are
classified as impaired. Trouble debt restructurings totaled $3,852 at June 30, 2012, $3,961 at December 31, 2011 and
$4,738 at June 30, 2011.

The Company offers a variety of modifications to borrowers. The modification categories offered can generally be
described in the following categories:

Rate Modification - A modification in which the interest rate is changed.
Term Modification - A modification in which the maturity date, timing of payments or frequency
of payments is changed.
Interest Only Modification - A modification in which the loan is converted to interest only
payments for a period of time.
Payment Modification - A modification in which the dollar amount of the payment is changed,
other than an interest only modification described above.
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Combination Modification - Any other type of modification, including the use of multiple
categories above.
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PEOPLES FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

4.  Loans, net and allowance for loan losses (continued)

Information concerning trouble debt restructurings by major loan category at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 is
summarized as follows:

June 30, 2012
Number of
Contracts

Accrual
Status

Nonaccrual
Status

Total
Modifications

Commercial 2 $2,198 $ 2,198
Real estate:
Commercial 1 $1,654 $ 1,654
Residential
Consumer
Total 3 $1,654 $2,198 $ 3,852

December 31, 2011
Number of
Contracts

Accrual 
Status

Nonaccrual
Status

Total
Modifications

Commercial 2 $2,294 $ 2,294
Real estate:
Commercial 1 $1,667 $ 1,667
Residential
Consumer
Total 3 $1,667 $2,294 $ 3,961

There were no defaults of loans considered troubled debt restructurings for the three and six months ended June 30,
2012.  There were no loans modified as troubled debt restructurings for the three and six months ended June 30,
2012.  There were no charge-offs as a result of the troubled debt restructurings.

5.  Stock-based compensation:

As of June 30, 2012, all stock options were fully vested and there are no unrecognized compensation costs related to
stock options.  There were no stock options granted for the six month periods ending June 30, 2012 and 2011.

6.  Off-balance sheet financial instruments:

The Company does not issue any guarantees that would require liability recognition or disclosure, other than standby
letters of credit.  Outstanding letters of credit written are conditional commitments issued by the Company to
guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party.  The Company's exposure to credit loss in the event of
nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument for standby letters of credit is represented by the
contractual amount of those instruments.  The Company had $16,648 of standby letters of credit at June 30,
2012.  The Company uses the same credit policies in making conditional obligations as it does for on-balance sheet
instruments.
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PEOPLES FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

6.  Off-balance sheet financial instruments (continued)

The majority of these standby letters of credit expire within the next twelve months.  The credit risk involved in
issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending other loan commitments.  The Company
requires collateral supporting these letters of credit as deemed necessary.  The maximum undiscounted exposure
related to these commitments at June 30, 2012 was $16,648 and the approximate value of underlying collateral upon
liquidation, that would be expected to cover this maximum potential exposure, was $15,826.

7.  Fair value estimates:

Fair value estimates are based on quoted market prices, if available, quoted market prices of similar assets or
liabilities, or the present value of expected future cash flows and other valuation techniques. These valuations are
significantly affected by discount rates, cash flow assumptions, and risk assumptions used. Therefore, fair value
estimates may not be substantiated by comparison to independent markets and are not intended to reflect the proceeds
that may be realizable in an immediate settlement of the instruments.

Fair value is determined at one point in time and is not representative of future value. These amounts do not reflect the
total value of a going concern organization. Management does not have the intention to dispose of a significant
portion of its assets and liabilities and therefore, the unrealized gains or losses should not be interpreted as a forecast
of future earnings and cash flows.

In accordance with GAAP, the Company groups its assets and liabilities generally measured at fair value into three
levels based on market information or other fair value estimates in which the assets and liabilities are traded or valued
and the reliability of the assumptions used to determine fair value.  These levels include:
•  Level 1:  Unadjusted quoted prices of identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the entity has the ability to
access as of the measurement date.

•  Level 2:  Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by
observable market data.

•  Level 3:  Significant unobservable inputs that reflect a reporting entity’s own assumptions about the assumptions
that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

An asset or liability’s placement in the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the
fair value measurement.

The following is a discussion of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis and the valuation
techniques applied:

Investment securities available-for-sale: The fair value of investment securities available-for-sale which are measured
on a recurring basis are determined primarily by obtaining quoted prices on nationally recognized securities exchanges
or matrix pricing, which is a mathematical technique used widely in the industry to value debt securities without
relying exclusively on quoted prices for the specific securities but rather by relying on the securities’ relationship to
other similar securities. These securities are classified within Level 1 or 2 of the fair value hierarchy. Positions that are
not traded in active markets for which valuations are generated using assumptions not observable in the market or
management’s best estimate are classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The Company does not have any
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20

Edgar Filing: Hennessy Capital Acquisition Corp II - Form 424B4

39



PEOPLES FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

7.  Fair value estimates (continued)

The Company may be required from time to time to measure certain assets at fair value on a nonrecurring basis in
accordance with GAAP. These adjustments to fair value usually result from application of lower-of-cost-or-market
accounting or write-downs of the following individual assets:

Other real estate owned: Other real estate owned is recorded at fair value less cost to sell at the time of acquisition
establishing a new cost basis.  Other real estate owned is carried at the lower of the investment in the assets or the fair
value of the assets less estimated selling costs. The use of independent appraisals and management’s best judgment are
significant inputs in arriving at the fair value measure of the underlying collateral and therefore other real estate
owned and repossessed assets are classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Loans held for sale: Loans held for sale are carried, in aggregate, at the lower of cost or fair value. The use of a
valuation model using quoted prices of similar instruments are significant inputs in arriving at the fair value and
therefore loans held for sale are classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Impaired loans: Impaired loans are carried at the lower of cost or the fair value of the collateral for
collateral-dependent loans. Collateral may be in the form of real estate or business assets including equipment,
inventory and accounts receivable. The use of independent appraisals, discounted cash flow models and management’s
best judgment are significant inputs in arriving at the fair value measure of the underlying collateral and impaired
loans are therefore classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
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7.  Fair value estimates (continued)

Assets and liabilities at fair value or a recurring and nonrecurring basis at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, are
summarized as follows:

Fair Value Measurement Using

June 30, 2012 Amount

Quoted Prices
in Active

Markets for
Identical
Assets

(Level 1)

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

Recurring fair value measurements
Investment securities
available-for-sale
U.S. Government-sponsored
enterprises $ 33,015 $ 33,015
State and municipals:
Taxable 18,482 18,482
Tax-exempt 35,497 35,497
Corporate debt securities 3,491 3,491
Mortgage-backed securities:
U.S. Government agencies 15,447 15,447
U.S. Government-sponsored
enterprises 22,194 22,194
Equity securities:
Preferred
Common 470 $ 470
Total investment securities
available-for-sale $ 128,596 $ 470 $ 128,126
Total recurring fair value
measurements $ 128,596 $ 470 $ 128,126

Nonrecurring fair value
measurements
Impaired loans $ 6,491 $ 6,491
Total nonrecurring fair value
measurements $ 6,491 $ 6,491
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7.  Fair value estimates (continued)

Fair Value Measurement Using

December 31, 2011 Amount

Quoted Prices
in

Active
Markets for
Identical
Assets

(Level 1)

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

Recurring fair value measurements
Investment securities
available-for-sale
U.S. Government-sponsored
enterprises $ 32,776 $ 32,776
State and municipals:
Taxable 19,728 19,728
Tax-exempt 39,686 39,686
Corporate debt securities 3,850 3,850
Mortgage-backed securities:
U.S. Government agencies 16,912 16,912
U.S. Government-sponsored
enterprises 26,263 26,263
Equity securities:
Preferred 117 117
Common 567 $ 567
Total investment securities
available-for-sale $ 139,899 $ 567 $ 139,332
Total recurring fair value
measurements $ 139,899 $ 567 $ 139,332

Nonrecurring fair value
measurements
Impaired loans $ 7,341 $ 7,341
Total nonrecurring fair value
measurements $ 7,341 $ 7,341

The following table presents additional quantitative information about assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring
basis and for which the Company has utilized Level 3 inputs to determine fair value:

Quantitative Information about Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

June 30, 2012 Fair Value Estimate
Valuation

Techniques
Unobservable

Input
Range

(Weighted Average)

Impaired loans $ 6,491
Appraisal of
collateral (1)

Appraisal
adjustments (2)

20.0% to 25.0%
(24.6%)
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Liquidation
expenses (2) 6.0% to 10.0% (8.8%)

(1)  Fair value is generally determined through independent appraisals of the underlying collateral, which generally
include various Level 3 Inputs which are not identifiable.

(2)  Appraisals may be adjusted by management for qualitative factors such as economic conditions and estimated
liquidation expenses.  The range and weighted average of liquidation expenses and other appraisal adjustments are
presented as a percent of the appraisal.
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7.  Fair value estimates (continued)

The carrying and fair values of the Company’s financial instruments at June 30, 2012 and their placement within the
fair value hierarchy, is as follows:

Fair Value Hierarchy

June 30, 2012
Carrying
Value Fair Value

Quoted
Prices

in Active
Markets for
Identical
Assets

(Level 1)

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 22,389 $ 22,389 $ 22,389
Investment securities
available-for-sale 128,596 128,596 470 $ 128,126
Loans held for sale 2,242 2,287 2,287
Net loans 451,138 465,905 $ 465,905
Accrued interest receivable 2,903 2,903 2,903
Restricted equity securities $ 2,507 $ 2,507 $ 2,507

Financial liabilities:
Deposits $ 538,111 $ 542,024 $ 454,426 $ 87,598
Short-term borrowings 13,233 13,233 13,233
Long-term debt 18,533 18,781 $ 18,781
Accrued interest payable $ 248 $ 248 $ 248

The carrying and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments at December 31, 2011 are as follows:

December 31, 2011 Carrying Value Fair Value
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,559 $ 10,559
Investment securities available-for-sale 139,899 139,899
Loans held for sale 569 569
Net loans 439,754 447,717
Accrued interest receivable 3,448 3,448
Restricted equity securities $ 2,374 $ 2,374

Financial liabilities:
Deposits $ 494,283 $ 497,680
Short-term borrowings 43,791 43,791
Long-term debt 18,927 19,300
Accrued interest payable $ 284 $ 284
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7.  Fair value estimates (continued)

The following methods and assumptions not previously disclosed were used to measure the fair value of certain assets
and liabilities carried at cost on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets:

Cash and cash equivalents: The carrying amount for cash and cash equivalents is a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Net loans: Fair values for loans are estimated using a discounted cash flow methodology. The discount rates take into
account interest rates currently being offered to customers for loans with similar terms, the credit risk associated with
the loan and market factors, including liquidity. The valuation of the loan portfolio reflects discounts that the
Company believes are consistent with transactions occurring in the marketplace for both performing and distressed
loan types. The carrying value that fair value is compared to is net of the allowance for loan losses and other
associated premiums and discounts.

Accrued interest receivable: The carrying amount of accrued interest receivable approximates its fair value.

Restricted equity securities: The carrying amount of restricted equity securities approximates fair value.

Deposits: The carrying amount is considered a reasonable estimate of fair value for demand, savings and other
variable rate deposit accounts. The fair value of fixed maturity certificates of deposit is estimated by a discounted cash
flow method using the rates currently offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities.

Short-term borrowings: The carrying amount of short-term borrowings approximates fair value.

Long-term debt: The fair value of fixed-rate long-term debt is based on the present value of future cash flows. The
discount rate used is the current rates offered for long-term debt with the same maturity.

Accrued interest payable: The carrying amount of accrued interest payable approximates its fair value.

Off-balance sheet financial instruments: Off-balance sheet financial instruments consist of commitments to extend
credit including letters of credit. Fair values for commitments to extend credit are estimated using the fees currently
charged to enter into similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the present
credit standing of the counterparties. The estimated fair value of the commitments to extend credit and letters of credit
are insignificant and therefore are not presented in the above table.
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Item 2.  Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Forward Looking Discussion:

Except for historical information, this Report may be deemed to contain “forward looking” information.  Examples of
forward looking information may include, but are not limited to:  (i) projections of or statements made regarding
future earnings, interest income, other income, earnings or loss per share, asset mix and quality, growth prospects,
capital structure and other financial terms; (ii) statements of plans and objectives of management or the Board of
Directors; (iii) statements of future economic performance; and (iv) statements of assumptions, such as economic
conditions in the market areas served by the Company and Peoples Neighborhood Bank (the “Bank”), underlying other
statements and statements about the Company and the Bank or their respective businesses.  Such forward looking
information can be identified by the use of forward looking terminology such as “believes,” “expects,” “may,” “intends,” “will,”
“should,” “anticipates,” or the negative of any of the foregoing or other variations thereon or comparable terminology, or
by discussion of strategy.  No assurance can be given that the future results covered by the forward looking
information will be achieved.  Such statements are subject to risks, uncertainties, and other factors which could cause
actual results to differ materially from future results expressed or implied by such forward looking
information.  Important factors that could impact operating results include, but are not limited to, (i) the effects of
changing economic conditions in both the market areas served by the Company and the Bank and nationally, (ii) credit
risks of commercial, real estate, consumer and other lending activities, (iii) significant changes in interest rates, (iv)
changes in federal and state banking laws and regulations which could affect operations, (v) funding costs, and (vi)
other external developments which could materially affect business and operations.

Critical Accounting Policies:

Disclosure of our significant accounting policies are included in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements of the
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011.  Some of these policies are particularly sensitive
requiring significant judgments, estimates and assumptions.

Operating Environment:

Economic activity in the United States slowed in the second quarter of 2012. Estimates for second quarter gross
domestic product are expected to be below the 1.9 percent level experienced in the previous quarter. Unemployment
remains above 8.0 percent and inflation remains benign based on consumer price index (“CPI”) expectations falling
from 2.2 percent to 2.0 percent.
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Review of Financial Position:

Total assets grew $17,310 or at an annualized rate of 5.6% to $638,714 at June 30, 2012, from $621,404 at
December 31, 2011. For the six months ended June 30, 2012, total assets averaged $626,062, an increase of $54,500
or 9.5%, from $571,562 for the same period of 2011. The 2012 balance sheet growth was driven by increases in total
deposits of $43,828, an annualized growth rate of 17.9%.  Interest-bearing deposits increased $40,121, while
noninterest-bearing deposits grew $3,707.  Loans, net increased $11,951 or at an annualized rate of 5.4% to $457,054
at June 30, 2012, compared to $445,103 at December 31, 2011. Total stockholders’ equity increased $4,263 or at an
annualized rate of 14.4%, from $59,613 at year-end 2011 to $63,876 at June 30, 2012.

Investment Portfolio:

The entire securities portfolio is held as available for sale, which allows for greater flexibility in using the investment
portfolio for liquidity purposes by allowing securities to be sold when market opportunities occur.  Investment
securities totaled $128,596 at June 30, 2012, a decrease of $11,303 or 8.1% from $139,899 at December 31,
2011.  The decrease resulted from the sale of longer-term tax-exempt municipals in order to reduce the portfolio’s
exposure to interest rate changes. The tax-exempt municipal sector totaled $35,497, or 27.6% of the portfolio at June
30, 2012, as compared to $39,686, or 28.4% at December 31, 2011.  In addition to reducing our exposure to interest
rate risk, the sale of certain tax-exempt municipal securities was in line with tax planning strategies given the 2011
acquisition of a limited partnership, which will afford us significant tax credits in 2012.

For the six months ended June 30, 2012, the investment portfolio averaged $135,633, an increase of $21,497 or 18.8%
compared to $114,136 for the same period last year. The tax-equivalent yield on the investment portfolio decreased
130 basis points to 3.40% for the six months ended June 30, 2012, from 4.70% for the comparable period of
2011.  The tax-equivalent yield decreased 6 basis points to 3.37% for the second quarter of 2012 from 3.44% for the
first quarter of 2012.

Securities available for sale are accounted for at fair value, with unrealized gains or losses net of deferred income
taxes reported in the accumulated other comprehensive income component of stockholders’ equity.  The carrying value
of securities at June 30, 2012, included a net unrealized gain of $6,908 reflected as accumulated other comprehensive
income of $4,559 in stockholders’ equity, net of deferred income taxes of $2,349.  This compares to a net unrealized
gain of $5,523 at December 31, 2011, reflected as an accumulated other comprehensive income of $3,645, net of
deferred income taxes of $1,878.

The Asset/Liability Committee (“ALCO”) reviews the performance and risk elements of the investment portfolio
monthly.  Through active balance sheet management and analysis of the securities portfolio, we maintain sufficient
liquidity to satisfy depositor requirements and meet the credit needs of our customers.
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Loan Portfolio:

Loans, net increased $11,951, or 5.4% annualized, to $457,054 at June 30, 2012 from $445,103 at December 31,
2011.  The growth reflected increases in commercial loans and commercial real estate loans partially offset by
decreases in residential real estate and consumer loans. Commercial loans increased $6,896, or 8.6% annualized, to
$167,724 at June 30, 2012 compared to $160,828 at December 31, 2011. Commercial real estate loans increased
$8,888, or 12.3% annualized, to $154,442 at June 30, 2012 compared to $145,554 at December 31, 2011.

Weak labor markets, coupled with higher food and energy prices, eroded consumer purchasing power during the first
half of 2012. In addition, declining home and related equity values have further reduced household wealth. These
factors resulted in a slowdown in the growth rate of consumer spending. Residential real estate mortgages decreased
$3,092, or 5.3% annualized, to $115,033 at June 30, 2012 compared to $118,125 at December 31, 2011. Our
consumer loan portfolio decreased 7.2% annualized, or $741, to $19,855 at June 30, 2012 compared to $20,596 at
December 31, 2011. In comparison to the end of the second quarter of 2011, loans, net increased $30,399 or 7.1%.

For the six months ended June 30, 2012, loans averaged $458,877, an increase of $48,443 or 11.8% compared to
$410,434 for the same period of 2011. The tax-equivalent yield on the loan portfolio was 5.45% for the six months
ended June 30, 2012, a decrease of 26 basis points from 5.71% for the same period last year.  The tax-equivalent yield
of the loan portfolio, in the second quarter of 2012, was unchanged compared to the first quarter of 2012.

In addition to the risks inherent in our loan portfolio, in the normal course of business, we are also a party to financial
instruments with off-balance sheet risk to meet the financing needs of our customers. These instruments include
legally binding commitments to extend credit, unused portions of lines of credit and commercial letters of credit made
under the same underwriting standards as on-balance sheet instruments, and may involve, to varying degrees,
elements of credit risk and IRR in excess of the amount recognized in the financial statements.

Unused commitments on June 30, 2012, totaled $74,795, consisting of $58,147 in unfunded commitments of existing
loan facilities and $16,648 in standby letters of credit.  Due to fixed maturity dates, specified conditions within these
instruments, and the ultimate needs of our customers, many will expire without being drawn upon.  We believe that
amounts actually drawn upon can be funded in the normal course of operations and therefore, do not represent a
significant liquidity risk to us.  In comparison, unused commitments, at December 31, 2011, totaled $69,800,
consisting of $52,749 in unfunded commitments of existing loans and $17,051 in standby letters of credit.

We record an allowance for off-balance sheet credit losses, if deemed necessary, separately as a liability. No
allowance was deemed necessary at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011. We do not anticipate that losses, if any,
that may occur as a result of funding off-balance sheet commitments, would have a material adverse effect on our
operating results or financial position.
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Asset Quality:

National, Pennsylvania, New York and market area unemployment rates at June 30, 2012 and 2011, are summarized
as follows:

June 30, 2012 June 30, 2011
United States 8.2 % 9.0 %
Pennsylvania (statewide) 7.5 % 8.0 %
Lackawanna county 8.4 % 8.5 %
Susquehanna county 6.5 % 7.5 %
Wyoming county 8.5 % 9.6 %
New York (statewide) 8.9 % 8.2 %
Broome county 8.7 % 8.5 %

The employment conditions improved for the Nation and Pennsylvania, including all three counties representing our
market areas in Pennsylvania but deteriorated in New York and Broome County, New York from one year
ago.  Despite some improvements, employment conditions continued to be weak as unemployment levels remained at
historical highs.

In spite of challenging economic factors, our asset quality has improved through the first half of 2012. Nonperforming
assets decreased $853 or 8.0% to $9,803 at June 30, 2012, from $10,656 at December 31, 2011. We experienced
decreases in nonaccrual loans which were partially offset by an increase in accruing loans past due 90 days or more
and foreclosed assets. As a percentage of loans, net and foreclosed assets, nonperforming assets equaled 2.14% at June
30, 2012 compared to 2.39% at December 31, 2011.

Loans on nonaccrual status decreased $2,407 to $5,523 at June 30, 2012 from $7,930 at December 31, 2011. The
reduction from year end was due primarily to a decrease of $2,639 in commercial and commercial real estate loans
partially offset by an increase of $232 in residential real estate loans. The increase in foreclosed assets from $399 at
December 31, 2011 to $1,889 as of June 30, 2012 was primarily due to one commercial property.

Generally, maintaining a high loan to deposit ratio is our primary goal in order to maximize profitability.  However,
this objective is superseded by our attempts to assure that asset quality remains strong.  We continued our efforts to
create sound underwriting standards for both commercial and consumer credit.  Most commercial lending is done
primarily with locally owned small businesses.

We maintain the allowance for loan losses at a level we believe adequate to absorb probable credit losses related to
specifically identified loans, as well as probable incurred loan losses inherent in the remainder of the loan portfolio as
of the balance sheet date. The balance in the allowance for loan losses account is based on past events and current
economic conditions. We employ the Federal Financial Institutions
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Examination Council Interagency Policy Statement, as amended December 13, 2006, and GAAP in assessing the
adequacy of the allowance account. Under GAAP, the adequacy of the allowance account is determined based on the
provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 310,
“Receivables,” for loans specifically identified to be individually evaluated for impairment and the requirements of
FASB ASC 450 “Contingencies,” for large groups of smaller-balance homogeneous loans to be collectively evaluated
for impairment.

We follow our systematic methodology in accordance with procedural discipline by applying it in the same manner
regardless of whether the allowance is being determined at a high point or a low point in the economic cycle. Each
quarter, our credit analyst identifies those loans to be individually evaluated for impairment and those loans
collectively evaluated for impairment utilizing a standard criteria. Internal loan review grades are assigned quarterly to
loans identified to be individually evaluated. A loan’s grade may differ from period to period based on current
conditions and events, however, we consistently utilize the same grading system each quarter. We consistently use
loss experience from the latest twelve quarters in determining the historical loss factor for each pool collectively
evaluated for impairment. Qualitative factors are evaluated in the same manner each quarter and are adjusted within a
relevant range of values based on current conditions.  For additional disclosure related to the allowance for loan losses
refer to the note entitled, “Loans, net and Allowance for Loan Losses,” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements to this Quarterly Report.

The allowance for loan losses increased $567 to $5,916 at June 30, 2012, from $5,349 at the end of 2011.  In
comparison to June 30, 2011, the allowance for loan losses increased $763 from $5,153.  For the six months ended
June 30, net charge-offs were $468 or 0.21% of average loans outstanding in 2012, a $296 increase compared to $172
or 0.04% of average loans outstanding in 2011. Net charge-offs totaled $63 and $7 in the second quarters of 2012 and
2011.

Deposits:

Deposits are attracted within our primary market area through the offering of various deposit instruments including
demand deposit accounts, NOW accounts, money market deposit accounts, savings accounts, and time deposits,
including certificates of deposit and IRA’s.  During the six months ended June 30, 2012, total deposits increased
$43,828, or 17.8% annualized, to $538,111 from $494,283 at December 31, 2011.  Time deposits increased $3,320, or
6.1% annualized, to $111,919 at June 30, 2012, compared to $108,599 at December 31, 2011. Demand deposits,
increased $3,707, or 8.0% annualized, to $96,692 at June 30, 2012, compared to $92,985 at December 31,
2011.  Interest-bearing checking deposits, including NOW and money market accounts, increased $29,950, or 65.3%
annualized, to $122,230 at June 30, 2012, compared to $92,280 at December 31, 2011. Savings deposits increased
$6,851, or 6.9% annualized, to $207,270 at June 30, 2012, compared to $200,419 at December 31, 2011. The largest
increase was realized in interest-bearing checking deposits caused by the recently enacted law that allows financial
institutions to pay interest on commercial checking accounts. As a result, we created a new bank product for certain
accounts, which had been previously classified as borrowings. This reclassification added $27,563 to interest-bearing
checking deposits at June 30, 2012.

For the quarter ended June 30, 2012, total deposits grew $35,979 or 28.8% annualized.  Interest-bearing deposits grew
$36,640 or 36.4% annualized, while noninterest-bearing deposits decreased $661 or 2.7% annualized.  The majority of
the growth in interest-bearing accounts was due to the previously discussed reclassification.
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For the six months ended June 30, 2012, average total deposits increased $49,513 to $503,577 compared to $454,064
for the same period of 2011. Noninterest-bearing deposits grew $16,844, while interest-bearing accounts increased
$32,669. Our cost of interest-bearing deposits decreased 12 basis points to 1.04% for the six months ended June 30,
2012, from 1.16% for the same six months of 2011.  For the quarter, total deposits averaged $22,660 more in the
second quarter 2012 compared to the prior quarter.  The cost of interest-bearing deposits decreased to 1.03% from
1.05% comparing the first quarter to the second quarter of 2012.

Interest rates have been at historic lows for an extended period. Short term and core deposit rates have remained flat.
As such, deposits have been attracted by offering rates on longer term time deposit products which are higher than
other investment alternatives available to customers elsewhere in the market place. The added benefit of expanded
FDIC insurance up to $250 has also made bank deposits an attractive investment vehicle for our customers.

Borrowings:

The Bank utilizes borrowings as a secondary source of liquidity for its asset/liability management.  Advances are
available from the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB) provided certain standards related to credit worthiness have been
met.  Repurchase and term agreements are also available from the FHLB.

Total short-term borrowings at June 30, 2012, totaled $13,233 compared to $ 43,791 at December 31, 2011. The
decrease was due to the reclassification of accounts previously carried as borrowings into a newly created deposit
product in the second quarter of 2012. Long-term debt was $18,533 at June 30, 2012, compared to $18,927 at year end
2011.

Market Risk Sensitivity:

Market risk is the risk to our earnings or financial position resulting from adverse changes in market rates or prices,
such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates or equity prices. Our exposure to market risk is primarily interest rate
risk (“IRR”) associated with our lending, investing and deposit-gathering activities. During the normal course of
business, we are not exposed to foreign exchange risk or commodity price risk. Our exposure to IRR can be explained
as the potential for change in our reported earnings and/or the market value of our net worth. Variations in interest
rates affect earnings by changing net interest income and the level of other interest-sensitive income and operating
expenses. Interest rate changes also affect the underlying economic value of our assets, liabilities and off-balance
sheet items. These changes arise because the present value of future cash flows, and often the cash flows themselves,
change with interest rates. The effects of the changes in these present values reflect the change in our underlying
economic value and provide a basis for the expected change in future earnings related to interest rates. IRR is inherent
in the role of banks as financial intermediaries. However, a bank with a high degree of IRR may experience lower
earnings, impaired liquidity and capital positions, and most likely, a greater risk of insolvency. Therefore, banks must
carefully evaluate IRR to promote safety and soundness in their activities.
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As a result of economic uncertainty and a prolonged era of historically low market rates, it has become difficult to
manage IRR. Due to these factors, IRR and effectively managing it are very important to both bank management and
regulators. Bank regulations require us to develop and maintain an IRR management program, overseen by the Board
of Directors and senior management, that involves a comprehensive risk management process in order to effectively
identify, measure, monitor and control risk. Should we have material weaknesses in our risk management process or
high exposure relative to our capital, bank regulatory agencies will take action to remedy these shortcomings.
Moreover, the level of IRR exposure and the quality of our risk management process is a determining factor when
evaluating capital adequacy.

The ALCO, comprised of members of our Board of Directors, senior management and other appropriate officers,
oversees our IRR management program. Specifically ALCO analyzes economic data and market interest rate trends,
as well as competitive pressures, and utilizes several computerized modeling techniques to reveal potential exposure
to IRR. This allows us to monitor and attempt to control the influence these factors may have on our rate-sensitive
assets (“RSA”) and rate-sensitive liabilities (“RSL”), and overall operating results and financial position. One such
technique utilizes a static gap model that considers repricing frequencies of RSA and RSL in order to monitor IRR.
Gap analysis attempts to measure our interest rate exposure by calculating the net amount of RSA and RSL that
reprice within specific time intervals. A positive gap occurs when the amount of RSA repricing in a specific period is
greater than the amount of RSL repricing within that same time frame and is indicated by a RSA/RSL ratio greater
than 1.0. A negative gap occurs when the amount of RSL repricing is greater than the amount of RSA and is indicated
by a RSA/RSL ratio less than 1.0. A positive gap implies that earnings will be impacted favorably if interest rates rise
and adversely if interest rates fall during the period. A negative gap tends to indicate that earnings will be affected
inversely to interest rate changes.

Our cumulative one-year RSA/RSL ratio equaled 0.73 at June 30, 2012 and 0.65 at December 31, 2011.  Given the
length of time that market rates have been at historical lows and the potential for rates to rise in the future, the focus of
ALCO has been to create a positive static gap position in the near term.  With regard to RSA, we predominantly
offered medium- term, fixed-rate loans as well as adjustable rate loans. With respect to RSL, we offered a promotional
certificate of deposit with a 72-month term. This position indicates that the amount of RSA repricing written one year
would be less than that of RSL, thereby causing a reduction in net interest income with market rate
increases.  However, these forward-looking statements are qualified in the aforementioned section entitled
“Forward-Looking Discussion” in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis.

Static gap analysis, although a credible measuring tool, does not fully illustrate the impact of interest rate changes on
future earnings. First, market rate changes normally do not equally or simultaneously affect all categories of assets and
liabilities. Second, assets and liabilities that can contractually reprice within the same period may not do so at the
same time or to the same magnitude. Third, the interest rate sensitivity table presents a one-day position. Variations
occur daily as we adjust our rate sensitivity throughout the year. Finally, assumptions must be made in constructing
such a table.
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As the static gap report fails to address the dynamic changes in the balance sheet composition or prevailing interest
rates, we utilize a simulation model to enhance our asset/liability management. This model is used to create pro forma
net interest income scenarios under various interest rate shocks. Model results at June 30, 2012, produced results
similar to those indicated by the one-year static gap position. In addition, parallel and instantaneous shifts in interest
rates under various interest rate shocks resulted in changes in net interest income that were well within policy limits.
We will continue to monitor our IRR for the remainder of 2012 and employ deposit and loan pricing strategies and
direct the reinvestment of loan and investment repayments in order to maintain a favorable IRR position.

Financial institutions are affected differently by inflation than commercial and industrial companies that have
significant investments in fixed assets and inventories. Most of our assets are monetary in nature and change
correspondingly with variations in the inflation rate. It is difficult to precisely measure the impact inflation has on us,
however we believe that our exposure to inflation can be mitigated through asset/liability management.

Liquidity:

Liquidity management is essential to our continuing operations and enables us to meet financial obligations as they
come due, as well as to take advantage of new business opportunities as they arise. Financial obligations include, but
are not limited to, the following:

• Funding new and existing loan commitments;
• Payment of deposits on demand or at their contractual maturity;
• Repayment of borrowings as they mature;
• Payment of lease obligations; and
• Payment of operating expenses.

These obligations are managed daily, thus enabling us to effectively monitor fluctuations in our liquidity position and
to adapt that position according to market influences and balance sheet trends. Future liquidity needs are forecasted
and strategies are developed to ensure adequate liquidity at all times.

Historically, core deposits have been the primary source of liquidity because of their stability and lower cost, in
general, than other types of funding. Providing additional sources of funds are loan and investment payments and
prepayments and the ability to sell both available for sale securities and mortgage loans held for sale. We believe
liquidity is adequate to meet both present and future financial obligations and commitments on a timely basis.
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We employ a number of analytical techniques in assessing the adequacy of our liquidity position. One such technique
is the use of ratio analysis related to our reliance on noncore funds to fund our investments and loans maturing after
June 30, 2012. Our noncore funds at June 30, 2012, were comprised of time deposits in denominations of $100 or
more, repurchase agreements and other borrowings.  These funds are not considered to be a strong source of liquidity
since they are very interest rate sensitive and are considered to be highly volatile. At June 30, 2012, our net noncore
funding dependence ratio, the difference between noncore funds and short-term investments to long-term assets, was
5.3%, while our net short-term noncore funding dependence ratio, noncore funds maturing within one-year, less
short-term investments to long-term assets equaled -4.6%. These ratios indicated that we had very little reliance on
noncore funds at June 30, 2012. Comparatively, our ratios strengthened from year-end 2011 when they were 13.0%
and -1.7%, respectively, indicating our reliance on noncore funds has decreased. The decrease in noncore funding
reliance resulted primarily from an increase in fed funds sold and short-term investment securities. According to the
most recent Bank Holding Company Performance Report for our Federal Reserve District, these ratios for our peer
group were 15.3% and 3.6%.

The Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows present the changes in cash and cash equivalents from operating,
investing and financing activities. Cash and cash equivalents, consisting of cash on hand, cash items in the process of
collection, deposit balances with other banks and federal funds sold, increased $11,830 during the six months ended
June 30, 2012. Cash and cash equivalents increased $5,259 for the same period last year. For the six months ended
June 30, 2012, net cash inflows of $11,521 from financing activities and $3,890 from operating activities were
partially offset by a $3,581 net cash outflow from investing activities. For the same period of 2011, net cash inflows of
$22,730 from financing activities and $4,308 from operating activities were partially offset by a $21,779 net cash
outflow from investing activities.

Financing activities provided net cash of $11,521 for the six months ended June 30, 2012, and $22,730 for the same
six months of 2011. Deposit gathering is our predominant financing activity. During the first six months of 2012
deposit gathering increased, which resulted in a $43,828 increase in net cash. Similarly, deposit gathering provided net
cash of $31,835 for the same period of 2011.  We continued to attract deposits from new and existing customers,
including municipalities and school districts. However, deposit gathering in relation to natural gas activity within
existing markets in Susquehanna and Wyoming Counties of Pennsylvania has slowed as many of the leases have been
previously signed and funded.

Operating activities provided net cash of $3,890 for the six months ended June 30, 2012, and $4,308 for the same
period of 2011. Net income, adjusted for the effects of gains and losses along with noncash transactions such as
depreciation and the provision for loan losses, is the primary source of funds from operations.

Investing activities primarily include transactions related to our lending activities and investment portfolio. Investing
activities used net cash of $3,581 for the six months ended June 30, 2012, compared to $21,779 for the same period of
2011.  In both 2012 and 2011, a net increase in lending activities was the primary factor causing the net cash outflow
from investing activities.
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We believe that our future liquidity needs will be satisfied through maintaining an adequate level of cash and cash
equivalents, by providing readily available access to traditional funding sources, and through proceeds received from
the investment and loan portfolios.  The current sources of funds will enable us to meet all cash obligations as they
come due.

Capital:

Stockholders’ equity totaled $63,876 or $20.48 per share at June 30, 2012, compared to $59,613 or $17.90 per share at
December 31, 2011. Net income of $4,704 for the six months ended June 30, 2012 was the primary factor leading to
the improved capital position. Stockholders’ equity was also affected by cash dividends declared of $1,308, common
stock repurchases of $143, common stock issuances of $96 and other comprehensive income resulting from market
value fluctuations in the investment portfolio of $914.

Year-to-date dividends declared equaled $0.42 per share in 2012, an increase of 5% compared to $0.40 in 2011. The
dividend payout ratio was 27.8% for the six months ended June 30, 2012, compared to 30.5% for the same period in
2011. It is the intention of the Board of Directors to continue to pay cash dividends in the future. However, these
decisions are affected by operating results, financial and economic decisions, capital and growth objectives,
appropriate dividend restrictions and other relevant factors. Stockholders may automatically reinvest their dividends in
shares of our common stock through our dividend reinvestment plan.

We attempt to assure capital adequacy by monitoring our current and projected capital positions to support future
growth, while providing stockholders with an attractive long-term appreciation of their investments. According to
bank regulation, at a minimum, banks must maintain a Tier I capital to risk-adjusted assets ratio of 4.0 percent and a
total capital to risk-adjusted assets ratio of 8.0 percent. Additionally, banks must maintain a Leverage ratio, defined as
Tier I capital to total average assets less intangibles, of 3.0 percent. The minimum Leverage ratio of 3.0 percent only
applies to institutions with a composite rating of 1 under the Uniform Interagency Bank Rating System that are not
anticipating or experiencing significant growth and have well-diversified risk. An additional 100 to 200 basis points
are required for all but these most highly-rated institutions. Our minimum Leverage ratio was 4.0 percent at June 30,
2012 and 2011. If an institution is deemed to be undercapitalized under these standards, banking law prescribes an
increasing amount of regulatory intervention, including the required institution of a capital restoration plan and
restrictions on the growth of assets, branches or lines of business. Further restrictions are applied to significantly or
critically undercapitalized institutions, including restrictions on interest payable on accounts, dismissal of
management and appointment of a receiver. For well capitalized institutions, banking law provides authority for
regulatory intervention where the institution is deemed to be engaging in unsafe and unsound practices or receives a
less than satisfactory examination report rating.
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The adequacy of capital is reviewed on an ongoing basis with reference to the size, composition and quality of
resources and regulatory guidelines.  We seek to maintain a level of capital sufficient to support existing assets and
anticipated asset growth, maintain favorable access to capital markets, and preserve high quality credit ratings.  As of
June 30, 2012, the Bank’s Tier I capital to total average assets was 8.86%.  The Bank’s Tier 1 capital to risk weighted
asset ratio was 11.27% and the total capital to risk weighted asset ratio was 12.47% at June 30, 2012.  The Bank was
deemed to be well-capitalized under regulatory standards at June 30, 2012.

We repurchase stock in the open market to provide stock for our stock option and dividend reinvestment plans.  On
April 29, 2011, our Board of Directors announced they would reinstate a previously authorized repurchase plan and
we were directed to complete the plan through the purchase of the remaining 65,751 shares of the common stock
authorized under the plan.  Through June 30, 2012, we have purchased 35,300 shares of stock at a total cost of $978.

Review of Financial Performance:

Net income for the second quarter of 2012 equaled $2,284 or $0.73 per share, a decrease of $75 or 3.2% compared to
$2,359 or $0.75 per share for the second quarter of 2011. The decrease in earnings in 2012 was a result of the
recognition of gains realized from the sale of other real estate in the second quarter of 2011 offset by higher net
interest income in the second quarter of 2012 and decreases in other expenses in the current period compared to one
year earlier. Return on average assets (“ROA”) measures our net income in relation to total assets.  Our ROA was 1.46%
for the second quarter of 2012 compared to 1.63% for the same period of 2011.  Return on average equity (“ROE”)
indicates how effectively we can generate net income on the capital invested by stockholders.  Our ROE was 15.36%
for the second quarter of 2012 compared to 18.56% for the second quarter of 2011.  For the year, net income through
the second quarter of 2012 equaled $4,704 or $1.51 per share, an increase of $546 or 13.1% compared to $4,158 or
$1.32 per share for the same period of 2011.  Our ROA and ROE were 1.51% and 16.02% for the first half of 2012
compared to 1.47% and 16.74% for the same period of 2011.

Net Interest Income:

Net interest income is still the fundamental source of earnings for commercial banks. Moreover, fluctuations in the
level of net interest income can have the greatest impact on net profits. Net interest income is defined as the difference
between interest revenue, interest and fees earned on interest-earning assets, and interest expense, the cost of
interest-bearing liabilities supporting those assets. The primary sources of earning assets are loans and investment
securities, while interest-bearing deposits, short-term and long-term borrowings comprise interest-bearing liabilities.
Net interest income is impacted by:

• Variations in the volume, rate and composition of earning assets and interest-bearing
liabilities;

• Changes in general market rates; and
• The level of nonperforming assets.

36

Edgar Filing: Hennessy Capital Acquisition Corp II - Form 424B4

58



PEOPLES FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP.
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Changes in net interest income are measured by the net interest spread and net interest margin. Net interest spread, the
difference between the average yield earned on earning assets and the average rate incurred on interest-bearing
liabilities, illustrates the effects changing interest rates have on profitability. Net interest margin, net interest income
as a percentage of earning assets, is a more comprehensive ratio, as it reflects not only the spread, but also the change
in the composition of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. Tax-exempt loans and investments carry
pre-tax yields lower than their taxable counterparts. Therefore, in order to make the analysis of net interest income
more comparable, tax-exempt income and yields are reported herein on a tax-equivalent basis using the prevailing
federal statutory tax rate of 34.0%.

For the three months ended June 30, 2012, tax-equivalent net interest income increased $352 or 6.1% to $6,096 in
2012 from $5,744 in 2011.  The net interest spread decreased to 3.86% for the three months ended June 30, 2012 from
3.96% for the three months ended June 30, 2011.  The net interest margin decreased to 4.09% for the second quarter
of 2012 from 4.20% for the comparable period of 2011.  For the three months ended June 30, 2012, tax equivalent
interest revenue increased $171, or 2.4%, to $7,386 as compared to $7,215 for the three months ended June 30,
2011.  The increase was primarily due to the growth in average earning assets which increased $49,764 to $598,893
for the second quarter of 2012 from $549,129 for the same period in 2011. The overall yield on earning assets, on a
fully tax equivalent basis, decreased 31 basis points for the three months ended June 30, 2012 at 4.96% as compared
to 5.27% for the three months ended June 30, 2011. This was a result of the continuation of the low interest rate
environment along with increased market competition. The yield earned on loans decreased 26 basis points for the
second quarter of 2012 to 5.45% from 5.71% for the second quarter of 2011.  Average loans increased to $463,596 for
the quarter ended June 30, 2012 compared to $417,213 for the same period in 2011.  The resulting tax-equivalent
interest earned on loans was $6,277 for the three month period ended June 30, 2012 compared to $5,937 for the same
period in 2011, an increase of $340 or 5.7%. This indicates that the increase in interest revenue was volume driven
when comparing the two periods.

Total interest expense decreased $181 or 12.3%, to $1,290 for the three months ended June 30, 2012 from $1,471 for
the three months ended June 30, 2011.  This decrease was attributable to the decrease in the cost of funds since the
average volume of interest bearing liabilities increased comparing the three months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011.
The cost of funds decreased to 1.10% for the three months ended June 30, 2012 as compared to 1.31% for the same
period in 2011.  Conversely, the average volume of interest bearing liabilities increased to $471,074 for the three
months ended June 30, 2012 as compared to $448,963 for the three months ended June 30, 2011.  This increase was
primarily due to the increase in average savings deposits.  Average savings deposits increased to $207,108 for the
three months ended June 30, 2012 as compared to $191,608 for the same period in 2011. We continue to offer an
above market rate on our certificate of savings account, which has attracted money that customers are not willing to
invest elsewhere.
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For the six months ended June 30, 2012, tax-equivalent net interest income increased $722 or 6.3% to $12,154 in 2012
from $11,432 in 2011.  The net interest spread decreased to 3.86% for the six months ended June 30, 2012 from
4.04% for the six months ended June 30, 2011.  The net interest margin decreased to 4.10% for the six month period
ended June 30, 2012 from 4.28% for the same period in 2011.

For the six months ended June 30, 2012, tax equivalent interest revenue increased $437, or 3.1%, to $14,727 as
compared to $14,290 for the six months ended June 30, 2011.  The increase was primarily due to the growth in
average earning assets which increased $57,637 to $596,554 for the first half of 2012 from $538,917 for the same
period in 2011. The overall yield on earning assets, on a fully tax equivalent basis, decreased 39 basis points for the
six months ended June 30, 2012 at 4.96% as compared to 5.35% for the six months ended June 30, 2011. This was a
result of the continuation of the low interest rate environment along with increased market competition. The yield
earned on loans decreased 26 basis points for the first half of 2012 to 5.45% from 5.71% for the second quarter of
2011.  Average loans increased to $458,877 for the six months ended June 30, 2012 compared to $410,434 for the
comparable period of 2011.  Tax equivalent interest earned on loans was $12,427 for the six-month period ended June
30, 2012 compared to $11,613 for the same period in 2011, an increase of $814 or 7.0%.

Total interest expense decreased by $285 or 10.0%, to $2,573 for the six months ended June 30, 2012 from $2,858 for
the six months ended June 30, 2011.  This decrease was the result of a favorable rate variance as the cost of funds
decreased to 1.10% for the six months ended June 30, 2012 as compared to 1.31% for the same period in 2011.
Counteracting the positive influence from the favorable rate variance was an increase in the average volume of interest
bearing liabilities comparing the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011. Average interest bearing liabilities
increased to $469,124 for the six months ended June 30, 2012 as compared to $440,723 for the six months ended June
30, 2011.  This increase was driven primarily by the increase in average savings and time deposits.  Average savings
deposits increased $12,743 while average time deposit balances increased $9,797 comparing the six months ended
June 30, 2012 to the same period in 2011.
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The average balances of assets and liabilities, corresponding interest income and expense and resulting average yields
or rates paid are summarized as follows. Averages for earning assets include nonaccrual loans. Investment averages
include available-for-sale securities at amortized cost. Income on investment securities and loans is adjusted to a tax
equivalent basis using the prevailing federal statutory tax rate of 34.0%.

Six months ended
June 2012 June 2011

Average Yield/ Average Yield/
Assets: Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate
Earning assets:
Loans
Taxable $ 416,255 $ 11,197 5.41 % $ 373,091 $ 10,549 5.70 %
Tax exempt 42,622 1,230 5.80 37,343 1,064 5.75
Investments
Taxable 100,517 1,254 2.51 69,692 1,316 3.81
Tax exempt 35,116 1,041 5.96 44,444 1,343 6.09
Interest bearing deposits 1,076 5 0.93 1,041 5 0.97
Federal funds sold 968 0.00 13,306 13 0.20
Total earning assets 596,554 14,727 4.96 % 538,917 14,290 5.35 %
Less: allowance for loan
losses 5,549 4,297
Other assets 35,057 36,942
Total assets $ 626,062 $ 571,562

Liabilities and
Stockholders’ Equity:
Interest bearing
liabilities:
Money market accounts $ 36,148 104 0.58 % $ 40,208 125 0.63 %
NOW accounts 58,717 175 0.60 44,528 123 0.56
Savings accounts 205,373 659 0.65 192,630 820 0.86
Time deposits less than
$100 78,623 853 2.18 73,007 843 2.33
Time deposits $100 or
more 31,010 328 2.13 26,829 265 1.99
Short term borrowings 40,514 111 0.55 36,441 162 0.90
Long-term debt 18,739 343 3.68 27,080 520 3.87
Total interest bearing
liabilities 469,124 2,573 1.10 % 440,723 2,858 1.31 %
Non-interest bearing
demand deposits 93,706 76,862
Other liabilities 4,199 3,898
Stockholders’ equity 59,033 50,079
Total liabilities and
stockholders’ equity $ 626,062 $ 571,562
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Net interest
income/spread $ 12,154 3.86 % $ 11,432 4.04 %
Net interest margin 4.10 % 4.28 %
Tax equivalent
adjustments:
Loans $ 418 $ 361
Investments 354 457
Total adjustments $ 772 $ 818
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Provision for Loan Losses:

We evaluate the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses account on a quarterly basis utilizing our systematic
analysis in accordance with procedural discipline. We take into consideration certain factors such as composition of
the loan portfolio, volumes of nonperforming loans, volumes of net charge-offs, prevailing economic conditions and
other relevant factors when determining the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses account. We make monthly
provisions to the allowance for loan losses account in order to maintain the allowance at the appropriate level
indicated by our evaluations. Based on our most current evaluation, we believe that the allowance is adequate to
absorb any known and inherent losses in the portfolio.

For the three months and six months ended June 30, 2012, the provision for loan losses totaled $390 and $1,035. The
provision for loan losses was $804 and $1,225 for those same periods in 2011.

Noninterest Income:

Noninterest income for the second quarter declined $1,293 or 49.2% to $1,337 in 2012 from $2,630 in 2011. For the
six months ended June 30, 2012, noninterest income totaled $2,573, a decrease of $879 or 25.5% from $3,452 for the
comparable period of 2011.  Mortgage banking income increased $230 to $376 for the six months ended June 30,
2012 from $146 for the same period last year as a result of an increase in the amount of loans sold in the six months
ended of June 30, 2012. Revenue received from our Wealth Management Division decreased $94 year-to-date as a
result of a declining appetite for investment type products and services in the global economic slowdown in 2012. In
addition, year-to-date noninterest income for the six months ended June 30, 2011 included a $1,673 gain realized on
the sale of a commercial property held as other real estate.

Noninterest Expenses:

In general, noninterest expense is categorized into three main groups: employee-related expenses, occupancy and
equipment expenses and other expenses. Employee-related expenses are costs associated with providing salaries,
including payroll taxes and benefits, to our employees. Occupancy and equipment expenses, the costs related to the
maintenance of facilities and equipment, include depreciation, general maintenance and repairs, real estate taxes,
rental expense offset by any rental income, and utility costs. Other expenses include general operating expenses such
as advertising, contractual services, insurance, including FDIC assessment, other taxes and supplies. Several of these
costs and expenses are variable while the remainder are fixed. We utilize budgets and other related strategies in an
effort to control the variable expenses.

For the second quarter, noninterest expense decreased $172 or 4.2% to $3,898 in 2012 from $4,070 in 2011. Personnel
costs rose 7.4%, while occupancy and equipment costs increased 7.7%.  Other expenses decreased comparing the
second quarters of 2012 and 2011.  For the six months ended June 30, 2012, noninterest expense decreased $253 or
3.4% to $7,212 in 2012 from $7,465 in 2011.
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Salaries and employee benefits expense, which comprise the majority of noninterest expense, totaled $1,749 for the
second quarter of 2012. The $121 or 7.4% increase was a result of additional staffing and normal merit increases. 
For the six months ended June 30, 2012, salaries and benefit related expenses totaled $3,479 or 48.2% of total
noninterest expense, an increase of $405 from $3,074 or 41.2% of total noninterest expense for the same six months of
2011.

We experienced a $54 or 7.7% increase in net occupancy and equipment expense comparing the second quarters of
2012 and 2011.  For the six months ended June 30, 2012, net occupancy and equipment expense totaled $1,543, an
increase of $168 or 12.2% from $1,375 for the same six months of 2011. Increased depreciation expense and other
costs related to equipment and computer systems caused the increase between comparable periods. The ongoing need
for new technologies has increased the need for additional equipment and the costs associated with such equipment.

For the second quarter, other expenses decreased $347 or 19.9% comparing 2012 and 2011. For the six months ended
June 30, 2012, other expenses totaled $2,190, a decrease of $826 or 27.4% compared to $3,016 for the same period of
2011. Insurance proceeds of $353 were received in 2012 for flood damages incurred in 2011 and offset other expenses
on a comparative basis. Additionally, a prepayment penalty of $509 paid to the FHLB for the early redemption of a
term borrowing is included in year-to-date 2011 other expenses. There were no such prepayments in 2012.

Income Taxes:

We recorded income tax expense of $490 or 17.7% of pre-tax income, and $751 or 24.1% of pre-tax income for the
quarters ended June 30, 2012 and 2011. We recorded an income tax expense of $1,004 and $1,218 for the six-months
ended June 30, 2012 and 2011. The effective tax rate decreased to 17.6% in 2012 from 22.7% in 2011.  We
recognized a benefit of $370 in investment tax credits in 2012 in relation to our investment in elderly housing.
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Item 3.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

The overnight borrowing rate has been subject to a range of 0% to 0.25% since the Federal Reserve adopted their
accommodative monetary policy. The Federal Reserve and Treasury Department have also acted in concert to drive
longer term rates to historic lows as well as operating as a backstop to the financial industry through direct infusions
of capital. While some federal programs to aid the economy have expired, there are no immediate signs that the
current rate environment will change in the near term as the employment and housing sectors have shown only
minimal signs of improvement. As such, we are operating within a steep, albeit low yield curve environment which
has allowed us to maintain a strong net interest margin. At June 30, 2012, we are subject to a greater level of interest
rate sensitivity given a falling rate scenario. The results of the latest financial simulation indicate a possible increase in
net interest income of 3.5% given an instantaneous and parallel change of +200 basis points.  A decrease of 10.3% is
shown in the model at a -200 basis point rate shock scenario.  Our net interest income risk position is within the
guidelines established by the asset/liability policy for interest rate sensitivity testing.  We continuously monitor this
rate sensitivity and act accordingly to minimize the risk to our overall asset liability position.  To mitigate our
exposure from rising rates, we have implemented a plan to shorten the duration of earning assets and lengthen the
duration of interest-bearing liabilities in order to improve net interest income in the future.

Equity value at risk is monitored regularly and was within established policy limits at June 30, 2012.  For further
discussion related to quantitative and qualitative disclosures about market risk, refer to Item 7A of our Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2011.

Item 4.  Controls and Procedures

(a)  Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures.

The Company’s management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer,
evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15(d)-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as of June 30,
2012.  Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer concluded that, as of
the Evaluation Date, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective in timely alerting them to any
material information relating to the Company and its subsidiaries required to be included in the Company’s periodic
SEC filings.

(b)  Changes in internal controls.

There were no changes made in the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting that occurred during the
Company’s most recent fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the
Company’s internal controls over financial reporting.
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PEOPLES FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP.
PART II                      OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1.  Legal Proceedings

None.

Item 1A.  Risk Factors

No changes from those previously disclosed.

Item 2.  Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

On July 2, 2001, the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of 158,931 shares of the Company’s common
stock.  The following purchases were made by or on behalf of the Company or any “affiliated purchaser,” as defined in
the Exchange Act Rule 10b-18(a) (3), of the Company’s common stock during each of the three months ended June 30,
2012.  As of June 30, 2012, there were 30,451 shares available for repurchase under the 2001 Stock Repurchase
Program with no expiration date.

MONTH

Total number
of shares
purchased

Average price
paid per share

Total number
of shares

purchased as
part of
publicly
announced
plans or
programs

Maximum
number of
shares that
may yet be
purchased

under the plans
or programs

April 1, 2012 – April 30, 2012 3,000 29.00 3,000 30,451
May 1, 2012 – May 31, 2012 30,451
June 1, 2012 – June 30, 2012 30,451
       TOTAL 3,000 29.00 3,000

Item 3.  Defaults upon Senior Securities

None.

Item 4.  Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.

Item 5.  Other Information

None.
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PEOPLES FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP.
Item 6.  Exhibits

31 (i) Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer certifications pursuant to Rule
13a-14(a)/15d-14(a).

32 Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer certifications pursuant to Section
1350.

101+ Interactive Data File

+ As provided in Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, this information is furnished and not filed
for purposes of Sections 11 and 12 of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 18 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
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PEOPLES FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP.

FORM 10-Q

SIGNATURE PAGE

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto, duly authorized.

Registrant, Peoples Financial Services Corp.

Date: August 8, 2012 /s/ Alan W. Dakey  
Alan W. Dakey 
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer) 

Registrant, Peoples Financial Services Corp.

Date: August 8, 2012 /s/ Scott A. Seasock  
Scott A. Seasock 
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer) 
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Item
Number Description Page

31(i) CEO and CFO Certifications Pursuant to Rule 13a-14 (a) /15d-14 (a). 47

32 CEO and CFO Certifications Pursuant to Section 1350. 49

101 The following materials from Peoples Financial Services Corp. Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the period ended June 30, 2012, formatted in XBRL:  (i) the Consolidated Balance Sheets,
(ii) the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income, (iii) the Consolidated
Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity, (iv) the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
and (v) the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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